
https://nearnorthschools-ca.zoom.us/j/89106462703?pwd=TDJTbGRoa2pKY2EzVzYrWUg2ZHFMUT09
https://nearnorthschools-ca.zoom.us/j/89106462703?pwd=TDJTbGRoa2pKY2EzVzYrWUg2ZHFMUT09


2 | P a g e
√ Denotes an attachment BOARD MEETING 





 Minutes of the Public Session Board Meeting of the Near North District School Board held January 11, 2022 

1 | P a g e 

http://www.nearnorthschools.ca/


 Minutes of the Public Session Board Meeting of the Near North District School Board held January 11, 2022 

2 | P a g e 



 Minutes of the Public Session Board Meeting of the Near North District School Board held January 11, 2022 

3 | P a g e 



 Minutes of the Public Session Board Meeting of the Near North District School Board held January 11, 2022 

4 | P a g e 





 Minutes of the Public Session Board Meeting of the Near North District School Board held January 11, 2022 

6 | P a g e 







 
 

 

 

 

       PD Opportunities Calendar 
 

Title: February 2022 Trustee Professional Development Opportunities Calendar 

Scheduled 
Opportunities 

OPSBA has posted a number of previously recorded OPSBA professional 
development sessions on their website.  

These opportunities include all workshops and keynote addresses from the 2022 
Public Education Symposium, found here:  

https://www.opsba.org/events-and-publications/public-education-symposium/  

 

Ongoing 

https://www.opsba.org/events-and-publications/public-education-symposium/
https://modules.ontarioschooltrustees.org/
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/policyfunding/leadership/govern_resources.html
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/policyfunding/leadership/govern_resources.html
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/trustee-elections/index.html
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/trustee-elections/index.html
https://www.cdnsba.org/governance-resources
mailto:krista.messenger@nearnorthschools.ca


Closing Date Project Location Bidders Submitting Bids Awarded to  Net Award    Tax    Total  Rational

December 17, 2021
NNDSB 2022-006                 

HVAC Upgrades, F.J McElligott Sec. 
School

370 Pine Street         
Mattawa

Venasse Building Group        



 
 
 

Title: Supporting Students with Prevalent Medical Conditions – Administrative 
Guideline 

Contact: Superintendent Gay Smylie 

Date Submitted: February 15, 2022 



Policy Statement 

Near North District School Board is committed to ensuring a safe, accepting and healthy 
learning environment that supports student well-being, including the well-being of 
students with prevalent medical conditions. Students with health and medical needs will 
be empowered in this environment, as confident and capable learners, to reach their full 
potential for self-management of their medical condition(s), according to their Plan of 
Care. 

The purpose of this guideline is to ensure that there is a collaborative approach to 
student medical conditions. Collaborative partners include the student, 
parent(s)/guardian(s), principal/vice-principal, school staff and health care 
professionals. This collaboration is to ensure a full understanding of the medical 
condition, supports, clarity of roles and communication associated with the student’s 
individual Plan of Care.  

Staff training and familiarity with a student’s prevalent medical condition 

Informative Legislation 

 
6.0 Communication Strategies/Privacy and Confidentiality 
7.0 Daily Routines 
8.0 School Trips 
9.0 Awareness 
10.0 Training Overview 
11.0 Safety Considerations 
12.0 Reporting 



 
2 

13.0 Liability 
14.0 Prevalent Medical Conditions 
 14.1 Anaphylaxis  
 14.1.1 Definitions/Terminology  .1.1



 
3 

 
1.0 INFORMATIVE LEGISLATION 
 

http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/extra/eng/ppm/ppm161.pdf
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/extra/eng/ppm/ppm161.pdf
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/extra/eng/ppm/ppm161.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/05s07
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/15r03




 
5 

the student and his/her family. 
 

Emergency Medical Services: also known as EMS, ambulance or paramedic services, 
provide urgent pre



 
6 

Plan of Care: a form that contains individualized information on a student with a prevalent 
medical condition. 
 
Prevalent Medical Condition: for the purposes of this document, is limited to anaphylaxis, 
asthma, diabetes, and epilepsy (seizure disorder). 
 
Principal: refers to the Principal, Vice-Principal and/or Principal designate. 
 
School: all school and school-board activities, including field trips, overnight excursions, 
board-sponsored sporting events, and board-operated before- and after- school programs 
for children aged 4 to 12 years. 
 
School board(s) and board(s): district school boards and school authorities, in this case 
Near North District School Board 
 

School staff: all school staff who work in direct contact with students, including occasional 
staff. 
 
Self-Management: a continuum where a student’s cognitive, emotional, social and 
physical capacity and stage of development are determinants of their ability to 
confidently and independently manage their medical condition(s). The student’s’ journey 
to reach their full potential along the self-management continuum is not linear and can 
require varying levels of support over time. A student’s capacity for self-management 
may be compromised during certain medical incidents, and additional support will be 
required. 
 

Status Epilepticus: is a state of prolonged seizure (longer than 30 minutes) or repeated 
seizures without time for recovery and can happen with any type of seizure. 
 
Students: children in Kindergarten through to Grade 12. 
 
Target Range: is the 



 
7 

 

¶ inform the school of their child’s medical condition(s) upon registration (or when 
diagnosed) and participate in the creation of the Plan of Care for their child 
alongside the Principal; 

 



 
8 

 







 
11 

 

Plan of Care Appendices 
 

Appendix A: Anaphylaxis Plan of Care 
 

Appendix B: Asthma Plan of Care 
 

Appendix C: Diabetes Plan of Care 
 

Appendix D: Epilepsy Plan of Care 
 

6.0 COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES/PRIVACY AND CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

Due to the nature and severity of prevalent medical conditions, communication 
strategies must be clear and widely distributed across the School Board while 
maintaining student privacy. The Principal will establish a communication plan at 
the start of the school year to share information about students with prevalent 
medical conditions with parents, students, employees, volunteers, coaches, and 
where appropriate, food service providers, transportation providers and child care 
providers following consultation with the student’s parent(s). 

 

General communication about the prevalent medical conditions can be handled through 
board/school communication vehicles such as letters home to all parents, or through the 
school newsletter, board/school website, parent information nights and other school 
presentations. 

 
The student’s Plan of Care will identify those individuals in direct contact with the 
student during the course of their educational experience (including occasional teachers 
and volunteers) who will need training and/or information on the student’s prevalent 
medical condition. 

 
Near North District School Board will comply with applicable privacy legislation and 
obtain parental consent in the individual Plan of Care prior to sharing student health 
information with school staff or other students. Parents and school staff should be 
informed of the measures to protect the confidentiality of students’ medical records and 
information. 

 
7.0 DAILY ROUTINES 
Support will be provided to students with prevalent medical conditions in order to facilitate 
their routine or daily management of activities in school. 
 
This includes, but is not limited to, supporting inclusion by allowing students with prevalent 
medical conditions to perform daily or routine management activities in a school location 
(e.g. within the classroom, gymnasium, library, schoolyard; on a school bus; at a field trip 
location), as outlined in their Plan of Care. 
 
8.0 SCHOOL TRIPS 
When taking a student with prevalent medication condition(s) off school property, it is 
important that there is communication with the parent(s) and the third party operator 
(where applicable) to develop a careful and clear plan of expectations to meet the needs of 
the student.  



 
12 



 
13 

 
8. In situations where the teacher/supervisor is providing ‘in the area supervision’ (i.e. they 
are supervising an area in which direct lines of sight between supervisor and student are 
not always possible), assign a ‘buddy’ to the student with a prevalent medical condition. 
The ‘buddy’s’ responsibility is to assist the student and to access the teacher supervisors 
in case of an emergency.  
 
9. Take a suitable means of communication (e.g. cell phone) on the trip and/or ensure that 
an easily accessible phone is available at the site.  
 
10. Ensure that the parent/guardian provides an excursion kit consisting of any prescribed 



 
14 

medical condition as outlined in the student’s individual Plan of Care and are trained 
in prevention strategies to minimize risks, recognize the symptoms of a medical 
emergency and know the steps to follow when dealing with a medical emergency or 
student with a prevalent medical condition. 
 

The School Board will continue to ensure that Near North schools have current staff 
members with up to date first aid certification. 
 

Using evidence-based resources (e.g., Prevalent Medical Conditions portal via 
EduGAINS) and following consultation with appropriate stakeholders, the School Board 
will determine the scope of training required to support the implementation of prevalent 
medical condition procedures, as well as the mode of delivery of the training and privacy 
considerations. 

 
The scope of training related to supporting students with prevalent medical conditions 
must include: 
 

¶ strategies for preventing risk of student exposure to triggers and causative agents 

¶ strategies for supporting inclusion and participation in school 

¶ recognition of symptoms of a medical incident and medical emergency 

¶ information on school staff supports, in accordance with School Board policy 

¶ medical incident and emergency response; and 
¶ documentation procedures (e.g. collecting and sharing medical information)  

 

11.0 SAFETY CONSIDERATIONS 
 

There are a number of safety considerations to be managed when implementing 
policies on prevalent medical conditions. These considerations are necessary to ensure 
the safety of students with prevalent medical conditions and the students and staff who 
come into contact with them. Some students with these conditions will be required to 
carry, store and administer medication. 

 
• Students will be allowed to carry their medication(s) and supplies, as outlined in 

the Plan of Care; 

 
• School staff will support the storage (according to the item’s recommended 

https://www.edugains.ca/newsite/SafeHealthy���ϲʿ���ֱ��/medical-conditions/Prevalent-Medical-Conditions.html
https://www.edugains.ca/newsite/SafeHealthy���ϲʿ���ֱ��/medical-conditions/Prevalent-Medical-Conditions.html


 
15 

all students and visitors to reduce the environmental factors that may induce anaphylaxis 
in students. 

 
The ‘Administration of Medication Procedures Manual’ developed by Near North District 
School Board is in place to guide stakeholders.  
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Child and Family Services Act, 1990, where 
School Board employees have reason to believe that a child may be in need of protection, 
School Board employees must call the Childrenôs Aid Society and file a formal report. 
  



 
16 

12.0 REPORTING 
 

Subject to relevant privacy legislation, the Near North District School Board will collect 
data regularly, including but not limited to, data on the number of students with 
prevalent medical conditions at their schools, and should monitor the number of 
occurrences of medical incidents and medical emergencies, as well as circumstances 
surrounding these incidents. The School Board will use these data as part of their 
cyclical policy reviews and to report to the Ministry of Education. 

 
School policies will also include expectations for school staff regarding the documentation 
of any medication administered to students, including students with prevalent medical 
conditions. The maintenance of such documentation must be in keeping with the School 
Board records and information management policies as well as Personal Health 
Information Protection Act (PHIPA) and Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection 
of Privacy Act (MFIPPA) requirements.  
 
13.0 LIABILITY 

 

The Good Samaritan Act, passed in 2001, protects individuals from liability with respect 
to voluntary emergency medical or first aid services. Subsections 2(1) and (2) of this act 
state the following with regard to individuals: 

 

2. (1) Despite the rules of common law, a person described in subsection (2) who 
voluntarily and without reasonable expectation of compensation or reward provides the 

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/05s07
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/15r03
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/05s07
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/15r03


 
17 

14.1 Anaphylaxis 

 
Principals, Vice-Principals and school staff shall assist in attempting to reduce 
environmental risks for anaphylactic students, as well as encourage parents and visitors to 
participate in reducing environmental risks for anaphylactic students. The Principal shall 
specify a means of  ensuring that all community users of the school facilities are aware of 
any restrictions on food use and the reason for these restrictions. Principals cannot and 



 
18 

exclusive list. 
 
Early recognition of symptoms and immediate treatment could save a person’s life. Signs 
and symptoms to be aware of include: 
 
Skin 



 
19 

 

Employees will be preauthorized to administer medication or supervise a pupil while he 
or she takes medication in response to an anaphylactic reaction if the school has up-to-
date treatment information and the consent of the parent/guardian, or pupil as applicable. 
If an employee has reason to believe that a pupil is experiencing an anaphylactic 
reaction, the employee w i l l  administer an epinephrine auto-injector or



 
20 

observation as decided by the emergency department physician (generally about 4 - 6 
hours). 
 
5. Call emergency contact person; e.g. parent(s)/guardian(s). 
 
Resources 
Epi Pen Training 

https://www.epipen.ca/
https://www.epipen.ca/
https://foodallergycanada.ca/
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/pmc_anaphylaxis_fact_sheet_en.pdf


 
21 

2) If the parent(s)/guardian(s) still refuses to provide the school with epinephrine auto-
injectors and/or refuses to allow their child to carry an epinephrine auto-injector, the 
Principal shall: 

¶ suggest the parent(s)/guardian(s) contact Food Allergy Canada to discuss the 
refusal,  

¶ seek permission of parent(s)/guardian(s) to discuss the refusal with their physician 
or nurse practitioner; and  

¶ consult with the Superintendent of Schools regarding next steps.  
 
3) If attempts to resolve non-compliance persist, the Principal shall:  

¶ send a letter to the student’s parent(s)/guardian(s) outlining the risk to their child 
and have the letter signed and returned to the school,  

¶ inform teachers and others who have contact with this student that they will not be 
carrying an epinephrine auto-injector; 

¶ in consultation with the Superintendent of the School, the Principal will create a local 
plan to ensure that epinephrine auto-injectors are available for students when 
parent(s)/guardian(s) have refused to provide and/or have their child carry an 
epinephrine auto-injector; and  

¶ ensure that a notation is made on the student’s Anaphylaxis Plan of Care. 
Suggested notation on the Anaphylaxis Plan of Care would read “As a result of 
parent(s)/guardian(s) refusal to provide their child with epinephrine auto-injectors 
and/or ensure that their child carry an epinephrine auto-injector as per School Board 
policy, this Plan has been created to support the studentôs safety”. 

 

Anaphylaxis Plan of Care:

https://foodallergycanada.ca/


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/15r03


https://asthma.ca/
https://asthma.ca/
https://teachingtools.ophea.net/supplements/asthma-education-initiative
https://teachingtools.ophea.net/supplements/asthma-education-initiative
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5qNAm9CzYyg
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5qNAm9CzYyg
https://lunghealth.ca/
https://lunghealth.ca/
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/pmc_asthma_fact_sheet_en.pdf
https://asthma.ca/


 
24 

¶ seek permission of parent(s)/guardian(s) to discuss the refusal with their physician 
or nurse practitioner; and  

¶ consult with the Superintendent of Schools regarding next steps.  
 
3) If attempts to resolve non-compliance persist:  

¶ send a letter to the student’s parent(s)/guardian(s) outlining the risk to their child 
and have the letter signed and returned to the school,  

¶ inform teachers and others who have contact with this student that they will not be 
carrying a reliever inhaler; and 

¶ ensure that a notation is made on the student’s Asthma Plan of Care. Suggested 
notation on the Asthma Plan of Care would read “As a result of 
parent(s)/guardian(s) refusal to provide their child with a reliever inhaler and/or 
ensure that their child carry a reliever inhaler, this Plan has been created to support 
the studentôs safety”. 

 

Asthma Plan of Care: Appendix B1 

 

 
  



 
25 

14.3 Diabetes  
 
The Principal will communicate with the student, parent(s)/guardian(s) and/or community 
care allies, the expectations for safe storage and disposal of medication and medical 
supplies, including the safe disposal of sharps. Parent(s)/guardian(s) are expected to 
provide the school with all supplies required for the ongoing management of their child’s 
diabetes at school.  

 

14.3.1 Definitions/Terminology 

Blood glucose control 

Diabetes 

Diabetes Medical Team 

Hyperglycemia 

Hypoglycemia 

Insulin 

Target Range 

 

14.3.2 Education, Training, Response and Resources  

 

Education 

Diabetes is a disease in which the body either cannot produce insulin or cannot properly 
use the insulin it produces. There are two types of diabetes: Type 1 and Type 2.  

 

Type 1 diabetes is an autoimmune disease and is also known as insulin-dependent 
diab



 
26 



 
27 

diabetes the following strategies are to be in place:  
1. The school has a process in place to identify the student with Type 1 or Type 2 diabetes 
to the lunch supervisor, (staff members, noon hour supervisor, occasional teacher). 
 
2. The Principal verifies that the lunch supervisor (staff members, noon hour supervisor, 
occasional teacher) has been trained in recognizing the symptoms of a low blood sugar 
and knows the procedures in managing a low blood sugar reaction and/or emergency 
response procedures.  
 
3. Classes may use student monitors who can assist the lunch supervisor. Where 
appropriate, student monitors are to be in-serviced on their role and provided with direction 
to access the supervising adult immediately when the need arises. 
 
5. The identified student(s) with Type 1 or Type 2 diabetes, where appropriate, may be 
assigned an eating ‘buddy’ to access the lunch supervisor immediately in case of an 
incident.  
 
6. Where age appropriate, students in the class may be taught how to contact the office 
using the classroom communication system in case of an emergency.  
 
7. Lunch supervisor informs diabetic student of his/her location of supervision (e.g. 
identifies the classrooms and/or hallway he/she will be supervising).  
 
8. The following has been reviewed with the diabetic student: 

¶ Have their monitoring kit with them, at all times  

¶ Recognize signs of low blood sugar  

¶ Inform lunch supervisor when they feel unwell/experiencing low blood sugar  

¶ Eat all the food as outlined in their prescribed diet and/or as prepared by their 
parents/guardians. 

 
Blood Sugar Testing 
Blood sugar testing is a means of monitoring the blood sugar balance. When at school, 
blood sugar may be tested before meals, before/during/after exercise and when feeling 
‘low’ (refer to the student’s Diabetes Plan of Care for specific testing times). Blood sugar 
levels will change with eating (before and after), physical activity, stress, or illness. 
Sometimes the blood sugar fluctuates for no apparent reason. Good management means 
avoiding very high or very low blood sugar levels and keeping as close to ‘target range’ as 
possible. Student ‘target ranges’ are determined by their doctor and are found on the 
student’s Diabetes Plan of Care.  
 
Knowing blood sugar levels will: 

¶ Help the student understand the balance of food, medication, insulin and exercise 

¶ Help the doctor adjust medication, insulin and food

d e te rmi ne d by 



 
28 



 
29 

of time such as for phys. ed. class.  
 
Staff responsibilities while supporting a student with insulin administration: 

¶ To provide a safe and appropriate location.  

¶ School staff do NOT provide insulin syringe injections or push the button on the 
insulin pump (bolus).  

¶ If a student’s insulin pump beeps, allow them to contact parents/guardians to 
problem solve issues related to the pump. 

 
Fast Acting Sugar 
Fast acting sugar is to be taken by the student to prevent or treat low blood sugar (e.g. 6oz 
juice; or 5-6 Life Savers; or 3 glucose tablets). Students must be permitted to take fast 
acting sugar anywhere, and at any time on school property, on buses, or during school 
sanctioned activities. The fast acting sugar supplies are to be provided by the parents.  
 
Staff responsibilities for supporting the student in accessing fast acting sugar: 



 
30 

Severe Low Blood Sugar 
 
Hypoglycemia - Glucagon Injection:  
When the blood sugar level gets so low that the student is unable to take his/her fast acting 
sugar orally because they are unresponsive, unconscious or having a seizure the 
treatment is for an injection of Glucagon. Glucagon is a hormone made in the pancreas 
that quickly raises blood sugar. Glucagon is given as an injection like insulin by 
parent/guardian or trained EMS paramedics. School Staff do NOT Administer Glycogen 
Injections.  
 
The correct emergency response of school staff is to Call 911 immediately and inform 
Emergency Services that the student has Type 1 or Type 2 diabetes.  
 
Emergency Medical Services personnel will require the following, if available:  

¶ Student’s name, date of birth, emergency contact information  

¶ Medical history – available on the student’s Diabetes Plan of Care 

¶ Observations about what the student was doing prior to the event  

¶ Medications and any treatment prior to EMS arrival. 
 
Children with diabetes sometimes experience high blood sugar. Hyperglycemia is NOT an 
emergency situation, unless the student is vomiting, and it may require accommodations in 
the classroom.  
 
High Blood Glucose may develop as a result of one or more of the following:  
1. Too much food;  
2. Less than the usual amount of activity (indoor recess);  
3. Growth spurts;  
4. Stress;  
5. Not enough insulin; and/or  
6. Illness Symptoms. The earliest and most obvious symptoms are increased thirst and 
urination. Other: dry mouth, blurred vision, and drowsiness.  
 
Allow the student to check their blood sugar since symptoms of high blood sugar can be 
confused with symptoms of low blood sugar. A blood sugar of >14 is usually considered 
too high but refer to the student’s Diabetes Plan of Care for individual parameters. Allow 
the student to drink water at their desk and to have open bathroom privileges. Do not use 
exercise to lower blood sugars as this can potentially make the blood sugar go higher 
 
Children with diabetes are no more susceptible to infection or to illness than their 
classmates. Their attendance record should be normal. When children with diabetes 
become ill with the usual fevers and other childhood sicknesses the blood glucose balance 



https://www.diabetes.ca/
https://www.diabetes.ca/
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/pmc_diabetes_fact_sheet_en.pdf
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/pmc_diabetes_fact_sheet_en.pdf


 
32 

14.4 Epilepsy  
 
Epilepsy is a disorder of the central 



 
33 





 
35 

3. Illness  
4. Poor diet  
5. Menstrual cycle  
6. Change in weather  
7. Televisions, videos, flashing lights (including flickering overhead lights)  
8. Inactivity 



https://www.epilepsy.ca/
https://www.epilepsy.ca/
https://epilepsyontario.org/
https://epilepsyontario.org/
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/pmc_epilepsy_fact_sheet_en.pdf


 
37 

 
 
15.0 



 
38 



 
39 

Administration of Medication Forms must be completed in any of the following 
circumstances: 
 

¶ When it is essential for a student to take medication during regular school hours in 
order to attend school (determine if it will be Staff or Self-Administration in 
consultation with parents/guardians and determined by Principal). 

¶ When prescribed medication is required to respond to an emergency (determine if it 
will be Staff or Self-Administration or both, as determined by Principal). 

 
NOTE: If parent(s)/guardian(s) or responsible designates will be administering medication 



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A1 - Anaphylaxis Plan of Care 
 

 
 

PREVALENT MEDICAL CONDITION — Anaphylaxis 
Plan of Care 

STUDENT INFORMATION 

 



 

 

DAILY/ROUTINE ANAPHYLAXIS MANAGEMENT 

SYMPTOMS 

A STUDENT HAVING AN ANAPHYLACTIC REACTION MIGHT HAVE ANY OF THESE SIGNS AND 
SYMPTOMS: 

¶ Skin system: hives, swelling (face, lips, tongue), itching, warmth, redness. 

¶ Respiratory system (breathing): coughing, wheezing, shortness of breath, chest pain or 
tightness, throat tightness, hoarse voice, nasal congestion or hay fever-like symptoms (runny, 
itchy nose and watery eyes, sneezing), trouble swallowing. 

¶ Gastrointestinal system (stomach): nausea, vomiting, diarrhea, pain or cramps. 

¶ Cardiovascular system (heart): paler than normal skin colour/blue colour, weak pulse, 
passing out, dizziness or lightheadedness, shock. 

¶ Other: anxiety, sense of doom (the feeling that something bad is about to happen), headache, 
uterine cramps, metallic taste. 

EARLY RECOGNITION OF SYMPTOMS AND IMMEDIATE TREATMENT COULD SAVE A 
PERSON’S LIFE. 
 

Avoidance of an allergen is the main way to prevent an allergic reaction. 

 
Food Allergen(s): eating even a small amount of a certain food can cause a severe allergic reaction. 

Food(s) to be avoided:                                                              
 
Designated eating area inside the school building:                                         
 
Insect Stings: (Risk of insect stings is higher in warmer months. Avoid areas where stinging insects 
nest or congregate. Destroy or remove nests, cover or move trash cans, keep food indoors.) 
 
School Trips: ensure that the parent/guardian provides an excursion kit consisting of any prescribed 
medications as outlined in the student’s Plan of care, and that the medication be in a clearly marked 
container with an additional 50% supply in case of emergency. The excursion kit, for anaphylaxis, 
along with the Plan of Care, should include Epi-pens, emergency contact information and a cell phone 
(if applicable) 
Additional Considerations for School Trips: 
 
 
 
 
Other information/Safety Measures: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







https://foodallergycanada.ca/


https://foodallergycanada.ca/




Supporting Students with Prevalent Medical Conditions | 
Appendix A | Page2 

 

 



Supporting Students with Prevalent Medical Conditions | 
Appendix A | Page3 

 

 

 

EMERGENCY PROCEDURES 

IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING OCCUR: 

¶ Continuous coughing 

¶ Trouble breathing 

¶ Chest tightness 

¶ Wheezing (whistling sound in chest) 

(* Student may also be restless, irritable and/or quiet.) 

TAKE ACTION: 

STEP 1: Immediately use fast-acting reliever inhaler (usually a blue inhaler). Use a spacer if 
provided. 

 

 

1:1:1:1:



 

 

 

HEALTHCARE PROVIDER INFORMATION (OPTIONAL) 

Healthcare provider may include: Physician, Nurse Practitioner, Registered Nurse, Pharmacist, Respiratory 
Therapist, Certified Respiratory Educator, or Certified Asthma Educator.







 

 

DAILY/ROUTINE: DIABETES 



 

 

INSULIN – INJECTION 
 

   Student does not take 
insulin at school. 
 
   Student takes insulin at 
school . 
 
 Insulin is given by: 
   Student 
 
  Student with supervision 
 
  Parent(s)/Guardian(s) 
 
   Trained Individual 
 
All students with Type 1 diabetes 
use insulin. Some students will 
require insulin during the school 
day, typically before meal/nutrition 
breaks. 

Location of insulin:                                     
 

 Required times for insulin:                                
 
   Before school: 
 
   Morning Break: 
 

   Lunch Break: 
 

   Afternoon Break: 
 
   Other (Specify):                               
 
 Parent(s)/Guardian(s) responsibilities: 
                                                   
 
 School responsibilities: 
                                                   
 

 Student responsibilities: 
                                                   
 
 Outside Agency responsibilities: 
                                                   

 

INSULIN – PUMP DELIVERY 
 

 
 
All students with Type 1 diabetes 
use insulin. Some students will 
require insulin during the school 
day, typically before meal/nutrition 
breaks. 

Student must be able to eat per daily schedule.  
Supervision will be required   Yes      No  
 
Student must eat all required fooi6P365.65 289.85 re

W* n

 /P <</MCID 43>> BDC q

21

q

35.275 114.77 180.83 289.85 re

W* n

BT

/F1 11 Tf

1 0 0 1 126.8 326.35 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

(a)11(b)-11(e)-11(t)28(e)-11(s )] TJ

ET 0 1 410.43 5-6( )7(re)14(q)q

21

q
71 Tf

 Tf

1 0 0 1 530.47 463.9 Tm

0 g

0 G

[( )]  351.85  





 

 

SCHOOL TRIPS  
 
Ensure that the parent/guardian 
provides an excursion kit 
consisting of any prescribed 
medications as outlined in the 
student’s Plan of care, and that 
the medication be in a clearly 
marked container with an 
additional 50% supply in case of 
emergency.  

The excursion kit, for diabetes, along with the Plan of Care, should 



 

 

 

 

Consent for Student to Carry and Self-Administer 
Diabetes Medication 

 

We agree that                                          (student name) 

 can carry prescribed medications and delivery devices to manage diabetes while at school and during school-
related activities. 

 can self-administer prescribed medications and delivery devices to manage diabetes while at school and during 
school-related activities. 

 requires assistance with administrating prescribed medications and delivery devices to manage diabetes while at 
school and during school-related activities. 

It is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to notify the Principal if there is a need to change the Plan of Care during 
the school year and to inform the school of any change of medication or delivery device. 

This medication cannot be administered beyond the expiry date. 

 





 

 

 Steps for Hyperglycemia:  
 1. Allow student free use of bathroom 
 2. Encourage student to drink water only 
 3. Inform the parent/guardian if BG is above    
 

Symptoms of Severe Hyperglycemia (Notify parent(s)/guardian(s) immediately) 
   Rapid, Shallow Breathing                    Vomiting                       Fruity Breath 

Steps to take for Severe Hyperglycemia: 
1. If possible, confirm hyperglycemia by testing blood glucose 
2. Call parent(s)/guardian(s) or emergency contact 
 
For Pump Use:  correct with insulin bolus:   Yes    No 

 
 

AUTHORIZATION/PLAN REVIEW 

 

LIST INDIVIDUALS WITH WHOM THIS PLAN OF CARE IS TO BE SHARED 

                                                                                           

                                                                                           

                                                                                           

Is there a designated staff responsible for the implementation of this plan of care?  Yes       No 
If yes, include name:                                     

 

Other Individuals To Be Contacted Regarding Plan Of Care: 

Before-School Program Yes       No                                 

After-School Program Yes       No                                

School Bus Driver/Route # (If Applicable)                                                        

Other:                                                                                       

This plan remains in effect for the 20 — 20_ school year without change and will be reviewed on or before: 
                         . (It is th/68 1 429.43 391.38 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

367.65 382.38 222.35 21 26

B5 307.6 556.72 25.25 re

W
0 G

[(th)9(/68 1 429.43 391.38 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

367.65 382.38 222.35 21 26

B5 307.6 5563
0 G

[(th)9(/68 1p8(it)] TJrJ

ET

Q
6(t

EJ

sT

4

338(/g1.3u)] TJt)11(h8
33)] T

7
ET

Q
6J

ET
s
33.275 332.85 556.72 24.775 re

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 37.775 280.32 Tm

0

Q3[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 257.83 556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 203.58 280.32 Tm

31G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

ET

)-18(isp8(ioT

Q
6Jr85 556MC T

l)-5(ity57.83 556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F3 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 425.93 291.85 Tm

0 G

[(w8isp8(ioT

Q
6Jr85 556MC T

l)-5(ity57.83 556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F3 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 4317.35 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 307.6 556.72 25.25 re

W* n

BT

/F1 10.5 Tf

1 0 0 1 432.1
1 0 0 1 4317l)-5 re

W* .8a7OD)] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 257.83 556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 201.08 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ-5 .775 re

W* n

BT

/F195[(in)] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 257.83 556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F3 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 133.8 291.85 Tm

0 G

[( )] T9
0 G

[( )] TJ-5re

W* n

BT

/F3 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 367.9 291.85 Tm

0 G

[(c)6(h)11(a)-18(n)11(g)11(e)] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 257.3

Q

q

367.65 382.38 222.35 21 26

B5 307.6 556.72 25.25 re

W
0 G

[(th)9(/68 1 429.43 391.38 Tf)3(2 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 201.08 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ-5 .778 22 Tm
556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 65.275 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 307.2re

W* n

BT

/F1 10 556.h92 291.
W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 59.775 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 207.6 e

W* n

BT

/F1 1PW* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 59.775 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 277.6  4317l)-5 re

W* .8a857.83(c.275 p91.85 T9.775 re

W* n

BT

/F3 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 458.95 291.85 Tm

0 G


ET

Q

q

33.275 685 Tm
556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 65.275 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 757.61.85 Tm

0 G

[( 33.275 257
ET

Q

q

33.275 332.85  0 1 65.275 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 767.61.85 Tm

0 G

[(e

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 65.275 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 7332.8e

W* n

BT

/F1 10 556.h92 291.rT

Q

q

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

367.65 382.38 222.35 21 26

B5 307.6 5563
0 G

[(th)9(/68 1p8512la)- 556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 76.525 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 1tifac 556.72 49.775 re
aW* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 76.525 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 75 332 556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 76.525 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 20la)- 556.72 49.775 re
n92 29
q

72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F3 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 519.22 291.85 Tm

0 G


ET

Q

q

33.275 22ifac 556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 71.025 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 25la)- 556.72 49.775 r )] T9
0 G

[( )] TJ-5re

W* n

BT

/F3 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 367.9 291.85 Tm

0 G

[(c)6(h)11(a)-553

59 556.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F1  257.83 7875 r
q

8

1 0  257.83 556.7210 Tf

1 0 0 1 54.275 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 257.83 657.83 TJ

ET

Q

h91.85 Tn92 g92 29* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 93.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 25307.6  657.83 TJ

ET

Q

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 93.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 2533 556.657.83 TJ

ET

Q
0 T3.2729* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 93.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 2873 556.657.83 TJ

ET

Q
n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 104.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 257.8983 55657.83 TJ

ET

Q
p91.

3356.ET

Q

210.85 289.85 17.5 1 re

f*

257.85 289.85 13.775 1 re
ET

Q

q

33.275 25883 55657.83 TJ

ET

Q

W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 132.05 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 21.83 657.83 TJ

ET

Q

q

33.27o
ET

Q

q

33.275 332.85  0 1 65.275 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.27511983 55657.83 TJ

ET

Q
W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 143.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 257283 55657.83 TJ

ET

Q
ca91.rT

Q
* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 165.58 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 2.83 55657.83 TJ

ET

Q
W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 143.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 254483 55657.83 TJ

ET

Q
5 Tmu2 49.775 7.83(gG

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

367.65 382.38 222.35 21 26

B5 307.6 556.72 25.25 re

W
0

33.5657.83 TJ

ET

Q
W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 143.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 25307.6 .657.83 TJ

ET

Q
0 T3.2729* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 93.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 21897.6 .657.83 TJ

ET

Q
W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 143.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 25927.6 .657.83 TJ

ET

Q
s
h91.o91.o91.9.775 re

W* n

BT

/F3 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 458.95 291.85 Tm

0 G


ET

Q

q

33.275556M8 55657.83 TJ

ET

Q
W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 143.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 2223M8 55657.83 TJ

ET

Q
y291.85 Tm

06 Tf

1.* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 143.3 280.32 Tm

0 G

[( )] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 2248 Tm5657.83 TJ

ET

Q
W* n

BT

/F1 10 TQ6.72 49.775 re

W* n

BT

/F3 10 1 143

BT32 Tm

0 G
 291.85 Tm
0 1 143

BT32 Tm

0 G
 291

330 1 143

BT32 Tm

0 G
 291

030 1 143

BT32 Tm

0 G
 291 0 0 1 84.025 292

33.2307.6 55.-10(e)6(m)-10(a)6(in)14(s5T

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 2

33.2307.6 55.-10(e)6(m)-1)] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275 257.83 437.83 TJ

ET

Q
P2 25a91.rT

Q


W* n

BT

/FTf

06 /G Tmu26.72 49.775 5 Tm
a83(8isp8(ioT
3 10 Tf

1F1 10 Tf

1 0 0 1 43.275 22

33.2307.6 55.-10(e)6(m)-1)] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.27557.8083 437.83 TJ

ET

Q
W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 02

33.2307.6 55.-10(e)6(m)-1)] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.27557983 55437.83 TJ

ET

Q
257.83 556.72 49.775 re

W2

33.2307.6 55.-10(e)6(m)-1)] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275525l33 437.83 TJ

ET

Q
W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 02

33.2307.6 55.-10(e)6(m)-1)] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275284 291.437.83 TJ

ET

Q
257.83 556.72 49.775 re

W2

33.2307.6 55.-10(e)6(m)-1)] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.2752907.6  437.83 TJ

ET

Q
W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 02

33.2307.6 55.-10(e)6(m)-1)] TJ

ET

Q

q

33.275292788  437.83 TJ

ET

Q
W* n

BT

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 02

33.2307.6 55.-10(e)6(m)-1

207.0
1 0  257.83 556.72 49.775 re

W* n
40T

/F1 10 Tf

1 0 307..2307.6 55.-
Q

q

33.275





 

 





 

 



 

 

 

AUTHORIZATION/PLAN REVIEW 
 

LIST INDIVIDUALS WITH WHOM THIS PLAN OF CARE IS TO BE SHARED 

                                                                                           

                                                                                           

                                                                                           

Is there a designated staff responsible for the implementation of this plan of care?  Yes       No 
If yes, include name:                                     

 

Other Individuals To Be Contacted Regarding Plan Of Care: 

Before-School Program Yes       No                                 

After-School Program Yes       No                                

School Bus Driver/Route # (If 



 

 

 

APPENDIX D2 

Seizure Incident Report 
 

Student Name: _____________________________   D.O.B.: __________________ 
 

 

Date Time of 
Seizure 

Length of 
Seizure 

Events 
before 

Seizure 

Description 
of Seizure 

Events 
After 

Seizure 

Date/Time 
Parent 
Contacted 

       

       

       

       

       

       

  



 

 

APPENDIX E1 

 
 

SELF ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION 
It is the responsibility of parents/guardians to administer medication to their children. Treatment regimens 
should, where possible, be adjusted to avoid administration of medication during school hours. When this 
is not possible, students should be encouraged to accept the maximum responsibility for the self-
administration of medication. 
 

REQUEST FOR ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION  
(PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT INFORMATION) 

 

A. Student Information 

Name 
 
 

Date of Birth 
 

Age

Date of AgeAge



 

 

 
Medication must be supplied in the original, clearly labeled container from a registered dispensary. It must 
include: 

¶ The student’s name; 

¶ Date of issue; 

¶ Name of the medication; 

¶ The name of the registered dispensary; 

¶ The prescribed dosage and 





 

 

Medication must be supplied in the original, clearly labeled container from a registered dispensary. It must 
include: 

¶ The student’s name; 

¶ Date of issue; 

¶ Name of the medication; 

¶ The name of the registered dispensary; 

¶ The prescribed dosage and frequency; 

¶ Period of use; and 

¶ The name of the prescribing licensed physician or nurse practitioner. 
 
 
I/We hereby request that the Near North District School Board, its employees or agents, as outlined, 
administer the above procedure/medication to my/our child. The Near North District School Board 
employees are expected to support the student’s daily or routine management, and respond to medical 
incidents and medical emergencies that occur during school, as outlined in board policies and procedures. 
I / W e acknowledge that the employees of the Near North District



 

 

APPENDIX E3 
 

Medication Administration Chart 
 

Student’s Name:  Birth Date:    

 

Parent(s)/Guardian(s)’ Telephone#:   

 

School: Grade:    

 

Designate Substitute 
Name & Initials: Name & Initials:    

 

Medication: Dosage:    

 

Times to be Administered:   

 

Directions for Ingestion:   

 

Dates or conditions in which Medication is to be





 

 

DAILY/ROUTINE  

Student is able to manage their condition and care independently and does not require any 
special care  from the school. 

 Yes      No 

ROUTINE: ACTION: 

NUTRITION BREAKS 
 
   Student requires supervision 
during meal times to ensure 
completion. 
 

   Student can independently 
manage his/her food intake. 
 
Reasonable accommodation must 
be made to allow student to eat all 
of the provided meals 





 

 

BASIC FIRST AID: CARE AND COMFORT 

 
First aid procedure(s):  

 

Does student need to leave classroom after a medical incident?   Yes       No 

If yes, describe process for 





 
 

1 
 

BOARD REPORT        
 

Title: Recommendation to Board from Charity Works Committee to 
establish an NNDSB Foundation 

Contact:   
Superintendent of Business Seija Van Haesendonck  



 
 

2 
 

https://www.hwdsb.on.ca/foundation/
https://www.hwdsb.on.ca/foundation/
https://www.tvdsb.ca/en/our-board/education-foundation.aspx
https://championsforkids.ucdsb.on.ca/


 

963 Airport Road, North Bay, Ontario  P1B 8H1  |  Tel: 705.472.8170  | nearnorthschools.ca 

 

Title: COVID-19 Update 

Contact:   Superintendent Timothy Graves  

Date Submitted: February 9, 2021 

Mandate:  NNDSB is committed to promoting public confidence in education 
through timely, accurate, effective, and transparent communication of 
Board initiatives, vision, and goals. This report provides an update on 
COVID-19 management for the Board of Trustees. 

Background: Child Vaccine Clinics 
We have recently been working alongside our Health Unit to support 
Child Vaccine Clinics in our schools. A highly successful clinic was 
held at Woodland Public School on January 20th from 4-7 PM. As we 
continue to support some of our rural areas and neighborhoods with 
access to clinics, we have dates scheduled at Parry Sound Public 
School (February 15th), Land of Lakes Public School (February 17th), 
and Evergreen Heights Education Centre (February 23rd). 
On Monday, February 7th, all Near North District School Board 
families with children between the ages of 5 and 11 years old were 
sent a link to a survey from the North Bay Parry Sound Health Unit. 
The survey will provide the Health Unit with further information to 
assist them in their planning of future vaccine clinics for this age 
group. We continue to promote all child vaccine clinics through our 
Board’s social media pages. 
 
School and Childcare Screening Tool 
On Monday, February 7th, the School and Child Care Screening Tool  
was updated to align with changes to COVID-19 Integrated Testing & 
Case, Contact and Outbreak Management Interim Guidance: 
Omicron Surge. Key updates include a clarification of isolation 
periods and an explanation of what is to be considered a “close 
contact”. Students and staff are still required to use this tool each day 
before attending school. Currently, teachers4 38iB1D[<00nirndimorkiay 

.  

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcovid-19.ontario.ca%2Fschool-screening%2F&data=04%7C01%7CKim.Pauli%40nearnorthschools.ca%7C6186d514a27d463e59d308d9ea3d4965%7C89caa3b007f246b9b750e973168b6c4e%7C0%7C0%7C637798371320510631%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=VDBRAdVIzCcYbyJJCGhAR5Tc7z0%2FGlsOWbLYe8AixHw%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.health.gov.on.ca%2Fen%2Fpro%2Fprograms%2Fpublichealth%2Fcoronavirus%2Fdocs%2Fcontact_mngmt%2Fmanagement_cases_contacts_omicron.pdf&data=04%7C01%7CKim.Pauli%40nearnorthschools.ca%7C6186d514a27d463e59d308d9ea3d4965%7C89caa3b007f246b9b750e973168b6c4e%7C0%7C0%7C637798371320510631%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=vxe2YSymEgeQ3qQqrlPXLWeCIhiJq%2FEwErhtLcLki8g%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.health.gov.on.ca%2Fen%2Fpro%2Fprograms%2Fpublichealth%2Fcoronavirus%2Fdocs%2Fcontact_mngmt%2Fmanagement_cases_contacts_omicron.pdf&data=04%7C01%7CKim.Pauli%40nearnorthschools.ca%7C6186d514a27d463e59d308d9ea3d4965%7C89caa3b007f246b9b750e973168b6c4e%7C0%7C0%7C637798371320510631%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=vxe2YSymEgeQ3qQqrlPXLWeCIhiJq%2FEwErhtLcLki8g%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.health.gov.on.ca%2Fen%2Fpro%2Fprograms%2Fpublichealth%2Fcoronavirus%2Fdocs%2Fcontact_mngmt%2Fmanagement_cases_contacts_omicron.pdf&data=04%7C01%7CKim.Pauli%40nearnorthschools.ca%7C6186d514a27d463e59d308d9ea3d4965%7C89caa3b007f246b9b750e973168b6c4e%7C0%7C0%7C637798371320510631%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=vxe2YSymEgeQ3qQqrlPXLWeCIhiJq%2FEwErhtLcLki8g%3D&reserved=0


 

963 Airport Road, North Bay, Ontario  P1B 8H1  |  Tel: 705.472.8170  | nearnorthschools.ca 

https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-school-closures-and-absenteeism
https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-school-closures-and-absenteeism


 

963 Airport Road, North Bay, Ontario  P1B 8H1  |  Tel: 705.472.8170  | nearnorthschools.ca 

not to participate, they are presumed positive and should isolate 
immediately and follow updated testing guidance. 
Once they have been issued their initial RAT kit, additional RAT kits 
will only be provided to students and staff when they return from an 
unplanned absence or dismissal at school/childcare and require more 
tests in the event of another episode of absence. 
 
Secondary Update 
Secondary schools returned to a traditional semester system (four 
course per day) on January 31st.  We recognize the exemplary work 
of school staff throughout the octomester model. An initial review of 
semester one student achievement data indicates that our students 
continued to be successful in the chosen pathway throughout the 
octomester model.  School teams have adapted and modified student 
success programs in support of these results. Secondary schools 
continue to offer a variety of student success approaches, such as 
grad coaches, cooperative education, SHSM to support student 
achievement through this transition and beyond. 
 

Athletics/ Extracurricular  
Despite the COVID restrictions and staffing shortages, we were able 
to offer a full slate of fall activities in secondary schools.  All of the 
winter sports started their season and are at various points when the 
pause happened.  Low-contact sports, volleyball, curling, cross 
country skiing and alpine skiing have resumed practices and are 
looking forward to competition. Current ministry restrictions prohibit 
high contact extra curriculars such as basketball and hockey in 
schools. Like many districts, the NDA (Nipissing District Athletics) has 
decided to focus on providing full schedules of local play for the winter 
season as OFSSA has canceled winter championships.  
Mixed cohorts band using wind instruments are still prohibited at this 
time.  
 
The NNDSB is grateful for the ongoing support of the North Bay Parry 
Sound District Health Unit in establishing and revising COVID-19 
protocols. We are looking forward to an updated COVID-19 school 
guidance document from the Ministry of Education in the coming 
weeks.  
 

 

 
 
 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

Title: Director’s Update 



/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/Administrative-Guideline-Consultation-Core-french.pdf
/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/Administrative-Guideline-Consultation-Extended-french.pdf
/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/Administrative-Guideline-Consultation-French-Immersion.pdf
/board/administrative-guidelines/


 

3 | P a g e  
 

Event Updates Special Recognition Days 
This month NNDSB is pleased to acknowledge special recognition days for 
their educational value, and connection to the Board’s mission, vision, and 
strategic plan. The following are a few examples noted this month, in 
addition to those shared as part of other board communications. Meaningful 
ways individual schools have recognized each day are featured on school 
websites and included in the monthly Chair/ Director newsletter, Near North 
Matters. 
 
Feb. 8 – Safer Internet Day 
On this day, stakeholders around the world come together to make the 
internet a safer and better place, especially for children and young people. 
To support the safety and well-being of NNDSB students, staff were invited 
to attend the presentation "ONLINE DANGERS: Online Child Sexual 
Exploitation and Cyberbullying", an online panel presented by Public Safety 
Canada. The event focused on difficult topics youth, parents, and caregivers 
face today– srec



OPSBA Report ʹ February Report 

Trustee ʹ Bill Steer 

NOPSBA Regional Meeting - Friday, January 28, 2022 

Labour Relations Consultation 

Janet Edwards, OPSBA Associate Director of Labour Relations, consulted with the group following the 

>ĂďŽƵƌ�ZĞůĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶ�Ăƚ�W�^͘��ƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐĞƐƐŝŽŶ͕�KW^��͛Ɛ�>ĂďŽƵƌ�ZĞůĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚĞĂŵ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�

trustee consultation regarding bargaining priorities and scope of matters to be bargained centrally. A 

document was screen shared with trustees asking three questions about quarantine/paid leave, hiring 

practices, and a list of central bargaining subjects. Trustees participated in a facilitated discussion about 

the questions and the collective feedback will be shared with the Labour Relations team. The Labour 

Relations team will consolidate the responses and bring them back through the Board of Directors in 

February. 

 

Potential action strategies to support the strategic priorities ʹ these are ideas for new and different 

ways for OPSBA to advocate and operate. 

Feedback is summarized here: 

· We at OPSBA must focus on climate change. Flexibility of funding necessary too ʹ we need this 

in the North (Steer) 

· Reference to OPSBA Equity Audit -- ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐŶ͛ƚ�ĂŶǇƚŚŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƉƌŝŽrities about equity and anti-racism 

as a whole. This should be a priority. 

· ^ƵŐŐĞƐƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƐƚƌŽŶŐĞƌ�ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƌĞĐŽŶĐŝůŝĂƚŝŽŶ͘�͞^ƵƉƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ͟�ŝƐ�Ă�ŶŽƚŚŝŶŐ�ƐŽƌƚ�ŽĨ�

word. Stronger language and more of an effort in this regard. 

· Reference to Project Compass ʹ equity work is critical to ongoing future of OPSBA. 

· We have to be honest and upfront when it comes to equity ʹ we have to realize that what fits in 

Toronto does not necessarily fit in the North or other areas and be aware that demographics 

need to be considered, 

 

NNDSB - Board Update ʹ as attached.  

Future Meetings 

¶ Northern Region Meeting - April 9, 2022 (Virtual) 

¶ Education Labour Relations and Human Resources Conference - April 28, 2022 (Virtual) 

¶ Annual General Meeting - June 9-

¶



Student 
Trustee 
Handbook
2022



D
is

cl
a

im
e

r

Student Trustee Handbook 2022

This Handbook was produced by the trustee members of the OPSBA-OSTA 
Liaison Committee and student trustees on the Public Board Council (PBC) of 
OSTA-AECO. It is based on the law and government policies and guidelines 
in effect as of January 14, 2022. The information contained in this publication 
is not intended to be legal advice. It is general information only. It should 
be noted that this document does not necessarily reflect the views of the 
Ministry of Education.

OPSBA and OSTA-AECO’s PBC do not guarantee the accuracy or 
completeness of any information published herein and not responsible for any 
errors, omissions, or claims for damages arising out of the use, inability to use 
or with regard to the accuracy or sufficiency of the information contained in 
this publication and similarly disclaims all responsibility for all consequences 



Table Of Contents

Additional Resources

Supervision

Professional Development Opportunities / Conferences

School Board Policies

Indigenous Education

Overview of Board and Committee Meetings

Student Trustee Tips and Advice

Student Trustees: Role and Responsibilities

Purpose

OSTA-AECO and OPSBA Overview



4



The Company Profile 2020

5

https://osta-aeco.org/
https://osta-aeco.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/ostaaecovisiondocument.pdf
https://osta-aeco.org/about/board-councils/
https://www.opsba.org/


6

Student trustees represent the voice of students in decisions about 
education, and they help keep students informed about important 
decisions that affect them.

The OPSBA-OSTA Liaison Committee is a recently created group 
whose purpose is to regularly connect on advocacy issues and offer 
support and guidance. This Handbook was produced by members of the 
Committee and student trustees who are members of the Public Board 
Council.



The Company Profile 2020

7

Student representatives who are actively engaged in the dialogue and 
decisions of a school board ensure these decisions best respond to the 
needs of the student population, that they are relevant in the current 
environment, and that the outcomes will be received in the most positive 
way possible. In accordance with the responsibility of trustees for the 
strategic planning and school improvement supports, student voice is a 
key tool for trustees to ensure achievement of student success.

Leveraging 



8

trustees.

Student trustees are to 
be elected either directly, 
by students of the board 
or, indirectly, by student 
representative bodies such as 
student councils.

They are responsible for 
facilitating communication on 
student issues and opinions 
between students and the 
school board by sitting on school 
boards and attending board 
meetings. Some boards have 
also introduced the position of 
Indigenous student trustee. A 
student trustee must be a full-
time pupil at the secondary 
level. This requirement does 
not apply to a student who may 
not be able to attend full-time 
because of an exceptionality.

Student trustees are also 
involved with leading their 
Student Senate, or Student 

Every school board in Ontario 

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02


The Company Profile 2020

9

Section 55 of the 





The Company Profile 2020

11



12

decision-making process and not discuss 
any aspect of private matters, including 
the nature of the topic and anything that 
occurred during the in-camera meeting.

Trustees are expected to attend all regular 
meetings of the board, either physically 
or through electronic means. Trustees are 
also expected to attend all meetings of the 
committee(s) of which they are a member.

A trustee must be physically present in 
the meeting room of the board for at least 
three regular meetings of the board in each 
12-month period beginning December 1. 
In addition, a trustee cannot miss three 
consecutive meetings unless approval is 
granted by the board [s. 228(1)]

Advisory committees are established on 
either a short or long-term basis to provide 
input into policy development or other 
areas where the board would benefit from 
the experience and expertise of other 
participants. Non-trustee members might 
include teachers, students, parents, and 
members of the community or local business-
people. Many boards now establish advisory 
committees as part of their commitment to 
public consultation.

One of the primary ways that school boards 
meet public expectations of transparency 
and accountability is to make policy 
decisions at open, public meetings. Public 
accountability is a cornerstone of Ontario’s 
education system. The Education Act states 
that all meetings of the board shall be 
open to the public [s. 207(1)] with certain 
exceptions.

Boards hold meetings regularly in order to 
govern effectively. Most boards adopt a 
regular meeting schedule, usually monthly. 
Special meetings may be needed for the 
board to consider time-sensitive or weighty 
matters.

Student trustees may participate in in-
camera meetings with the exception of those 
dealing with matters relating to intimate, 
personal or financial information about 
a member of the board or of a committee 
of the board, an employee (or prospective 
employee) of the board, a student, or a 
student’s parent or guardian.

All trustees must be aware of the 



The Company Profile 2020

13

General Order of Meetings 
1. Call to Order
2. Approval of Minutes
3. Officers Reports (if applicable)
5. New Business
6. Miscellaneous items
7. Adjournment

Meeting Tips
•	 Dress appropriately - business 

casual is the expected dress code 
of all attendees during meetings 
and conferences.

•	





The Company Profile 2020

15



16

Impact of the 
Truth and 

Reconciliation 
Commission 

(TRC)

In 2015, the TRC, released its final Executive Report and 
with it, the issuance of 94 “Calls to Action.” These Calls to 
Action also align and are in support of the United Nations 
Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples (UNDRIP), of 

https://www.rcaanc-cirnac.gc.ca/eng/1450124405592/1529106060525


The Company Profile 2020

17

First Nation 
Trustees



18

Indigenous 
Student 

Trustees
The Indigenous student trustee is meant to convey two voices: 
the student voice and the Indigenous student voice. When 
asked which role is their primary role, overwhelmingly they 
indicate their Indigenous voice as their primary responsibility.

•	 Indigenous student trustees will commonly raise issues unique to their community that 
are separate from the actual realities and lived experiences of other student trustees.

•	 Indigenous student trustees bring a unique perspective and historical experience of life 
as an Indigenous person, often living on a First Nations Territory.

•	 Indigenous student trustees can provide unique context and insight into systemic 
barriers that they face. These can include impacts of the Residential School System 
and the vicarious effects of inter-generational trauma.

•	 Indigenous student trustees can provide insight into external barriers such as racism 
and discrimination both inside and outside of the education system.

•	 Indigenous student trustees can bring attention to and highlight the work of the Truth 
and Reconciliation Commission and how this can impact a school, and the entire Board.

•	 Indigenous student trustees can be in a position to support and advocate for Indigenous 
Students from a First Nations Territory who have enrolled in a provincially funded school 
by virtue of a Reciprocal Education Approach and may have little or no student support 
or advocacy.

•	 Indigenous student trustees are encouraged to represent all Indigenous students within 
their board. This may require some creative ways to communicate within their school 
board jurisdiction.

In these advisory committees, the First Nation trustee is usually the chair or co-chair, and 
membership includes the First Nation, Métis and Inuit Education Lead, and a representative 
from each First Nation that has students in the board’s schools. Some ESAs also specify First 
Nation representation on the school board’s Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC). 
Where a First Nation trustee is required by regulation to be a member of the board, the SEAC 
must also have one or two First Nation members to represent the interests of First Nation 
students.



The Company Profile 2020

19

The Unique 
Role of the 
Indigenous 
Student 
Trustee

•	 Provides an additional student voice, which leads to a 
positive feeling among Indigenous students, parents, and 
community leaders in that their interests and issues are 
being heard.

•	 Creates feelings of belonging and being valued.

•	 Creates opportunities for leadership, training and experience among Indigenous students.

•	 Creates opportunities to raise level of TRC awareness.

•	 Brings a perspective that trustees and all board personnel can benefit and learn from.

•	

https://modules.ontarioschooltrustees.org/Modules/20-Truth-and-reconciliation.aspx


20

The Ministry of Education provides direction and expectations for district school boards and 
school authorities via policy documents called Policy and Program Memoranda (PPM). A full 
listing of PPMs can be found here.

School Board Policies

Student trustee should familiarize themselves with all PPMs, but may consider these recent 
PPMs that directly concern students: 

•	 Policy/Program Memorandum 166: Keeping Students Safe: Policy Framework for School 
Board Anti-Sex Trafficking Protocols

•	 Policy/Program Memorandum 164: Requirements for Remote Learning
•	 Policy/Program Memorandum 163: School Board Policies on Service Animals 
•	 Policy/Program Memorandum 162: Exemption from Instruction related to the Human 

Development and Sexual Health Expectations in The Ontario Curriculum: Health and 
Physical Education, Grades 1–8, 2019

•	 Policy/Program Memorandum 161: Supporting children and students with prevalent 
medical conditions (anaphylaxis, asthma, diabetes, and/or epilepsy) in schools

•	 Policy/Program Memorandum 160: Protected time for daily mathematics instruction, 
Grades 1 to 8

•	 Policy/Program Memorandum 158: School board policies on concussion

In addition, each school board would have their own local board policies that reflect their 
student and school community. These could include advertising, accessibility, equity & 
diversity, fundraising, homework, and transportation.

https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-166
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-166
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-164
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-163
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-162
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-162
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-162
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-161
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-161
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-160
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-160
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-158


The Company Profile 2020

21

The Member Boards of each region hold 
no fewer than two meetings each year, 
usually in the fall and spring, in addition 



22



The Company Profile 2020

23

and involvement in all conferences. There are 
numerous conferences that student trustees are 
able to attend.

For OPSBA conferences, protocols for student 
trustees should be in line with the safety protocols 
set up by OSTA-AECO (as outlined below). Most 
member boards ensure proper supervision and/or 
discussion is in place and discussed with senior 
staff when student trustees are participants and 
may even have policies and/or procedures about 
this.

Student safety is a number one priority within 
all Ontario public school boards. To ensure 
safety at all conferences attended by student 
representatives, supervision and safety policies 
have been created by both OSTA-AECO as well 
as OPSBA to ensure the safety and well-being of 
all conference attendees.

Student trustee mentors should ensure that 
student trustees are aware of all conference 
opportunities and work alongside the students to 
create opportunities for engagement, attendance 

Supervision



24

The Ontario Ministry of Education - The Ministry of Education is responsible for child care 
and for administering the system of publicly funded elementary and secondary school 
education in Ontario.

The Ontario Education Act - The Education Act and its regulations provide the statutory 
basis for how education is delivered to students who are enrolled in the publicly funded 
school system in Ontario.

OPSBA’s Guide to Good Governance - The fully updated resource is for trustees and 
boards for the 2018-2022 term of office.

Ontario Education Services Corporation’s Trustee Professional Development Program - 
This program includes 21 modules and aims to offer trustees a substantive overview of the 
areas that are essential to their governance role.

Transitioning from the COVID-19 School Experience – A Discussion Paper – This paper 
reflects the initial thinking of OPSBA membership from first-hand accounts of remote 
learning during the pandemic, in all manner of school and geographic setting.

The Students’ Vision for Education OSTA-AECO Vision Document - This document 
includes 35 recommendations across six pillars: enhancing equity, funding formula reform, 
strengthening rural & northern schools, system modernization for 21st century learning, 
supporting student well-being, and school board governance.

The Volume of Our Voices - This OSTA-AECO project serves to amplify your stories 
as students in Ontario’s education system. In the 2021-2022 school year, stories were 
published in three volumes, each addressing one of the following themes: the impact of 
COVID-19, cultural diversity, and diversity in gender identities and sexual orientation

Additional Resources

https://www.ontario.ca/page/ministry-education
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02
https://www.opsba.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/OPSBA_Good_Governance_Guide_2018-2022_Full.pdf
https://modules.ontarioschooltrustees.org/?lang=en
https://www.opsba.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/Transitioning-from-the-COVID-19-School-Experience-Discussion-Paper.pdf
https://osta-aeco.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/vision-1.pdf
https://osta-aeco.org/our-work/the-volume-of-our-voices/




26



The Company Profile 2020

27

Secondary Level
Grades 9 to 12 (See also Intermediate Division 
and Senior Division).

Senior Division

https://www.amo.on.ca/
http://www.cdnsba.org/
https://cmho.org/
https://kidshelpphone.ca/
https://www.eqao.com/
https://www.oesc-cseo.org/
https://www.ontario.ca/page/ministry-education
https://www.oct.ca/
https://www.principals.ca/en/index.aspx
https://www.ontario.ca/page/ministry-indigenous-affairs
https://www.mcss.gov.on.ca/en/mcss/index.aspx
https://ombudsman.on.ca/home
https://www.ophea.net/


28



Student Trustee Update 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, February 15th, 2022 

6:00 p.m.  

 

 

Good evening fellow board members,  

 

 Students of the Near North District School Board have been keeping busy and working 

hard as we begin the second half of the school year. Everyone has been settling in to the rhythm 

of the shift to the semester model. There has been positive feedback from students regarding this 

scheduling change, and students in some secondary schools are in hopes for access to lockers 

soon. Students are enjoying once again the immersive high school experience with clubs, sports 

and multiple daily classes!  

 

 Additionally, many schools including West Ferris and Almaguin have been holding 

information events for incoming high schools’ students. Informational nights were organized 

featuring details about courses, specialized programs, clubs, high school life, and anything 

students should know before entering grade nine! In continuation of this, course selections have 

begun this past week for secondary students with many new and exciting classes and programs 

across the board such as Indigenous studies, shop classes and specialized physical activity 

courses as well.  

 



 At the beginning of February, schools have had many different initiatives and elements to 

acknowledge and celebrate black history month. F.J. McElliogot, Parry Sound, Almaguin, West 

Ferris, and Northern have had different adaptations to acknowledge this from music featuring 

black artists, social media posts consisting of information, announcements, and bulletin boards. 

At Chippewa Secondary School, students have begun to paint a mural to recognize black history 

month. There is much more to come in this area later on this month as students learn more about 

the culture, triumphs, heritage, and adversities of black history in our country.  

 

 Upcoming plans for Valentine’s Day within the Near North District School Board are 

being put into action. Some secondary schools are selling candy grams, and sending flowers, 



 

 !"#$%"&'(

 
 
 
 
 

 

Adam Morgenstern



 
 
 

 

Adam Morgenstern



 
 
 

 !"#$%"&'(

4:45 pm – 5:45 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5:45 pm – 6:00 pm 
 

Coordinator Updates 
Policy Coordinator, Lily Graydon 

Adam Morgenstern



 
 
 

 

Adam Morgenstern



 

 
 

 
2.0 Membership 
The following shall be full members of the Committee with all voting rights: 
 

x One Trustee appointed as Chair 
x One Trustee as general member 
x The Chair of the Board of Trustees is an Ex-Officio member 
x The Director of Education or designate 
x The Officer of Corporate Affairs  

 

 
The Committee may invite other parties to attend in an information or resource capacity. 
Such parties shall not have voting rights. 
 
 

 
3.0 Quorum   
A quorum shall be a majority of committee members. 
 

 
 
4.0 Reporting & Accounting 
The Multi-Year Plan Committee does not exercise any power over decision- making 
within the Board. 
 
The recommendations of the Committee will be given full consideration by the Board, and 
the Board will confirm its response to any advice or recommendations provided to it by the 
Committee by way of motion. Further, the Director of Education will provide feedback to staff 
and senior administration regarding how their ideas have been used by the Director and the 
Board of Trustees.  
 
The Committee Chair shall be responsible for ensuring that agendas and minutes are 
prepared in accordance with the Near North District School Board By-law. Minutes for the 
committee will be approved at the following committee meeting. Once approved they will be 
added to the next Board of Trustees agenda for information purposes.  
 
 
5.0 Responsibilities/Duties 
The Multi-Year Committee shall be responsible for: 





963 Airport Road, North Bay, Ontario  P1B 8H1  |  Tel: 705.472.8170  | nearnorthschools.ca 

Contact: Superintendent Gay Smylie 

Date Submitted: February 15, 2022 

Mandate As per regulation 304 of the Education Act, school boards are required 
to submit a School Year Calendar by March 1st for the following school 
year to the Ministry of Education. 

A Committee of representatives from the four school boards in our 
region work together to create a calendar that meets the needs of our 
students, staff, parents, volunteers and community partners. By 
working together, the Committee aims to provide consistency across 
the geographical region and ensure a range of perspectives/needs are 
taken into account.  

The committee must also follow Ministry of Education guidelines, which 
state that all School Year Calendars must include: 

¶ 194 mandatory instructional days;

¶ Maximum of seven (7) Professional Activity Days (PA Days);

¶ Maximum of ten (10) examination days (for secondary schools).

Further, Community Consultation occurs with parents, staff, students 
and other stakeholders via our School Year Calendar (SYC) survey 
prior to the calendar’s finalization. The SYC will be submitted to the 
Ministry of Education pending Board approval, accompanied by a letter 
signed by the Director of Education. 



963 Airport Road, North Bay, Ontario  P1B 8H1  |  Tel: 705.472.8170  | nearnorthschools.ca 

An overview of our P.A. days for the 2022-2023 school year would be: 

¶ August 31 and September 1, 2022: MOE and Board initiatives,
with a half day of Violence Prevention Training for all ETFO and
OSSTF members as per their Collective Agreement.

¶ October 24, 2022: Board and MOE initiatives with a focus on
School and Board Improvement Plans (SIPSAWB and
BIPSAWB) with a focus on goals related to literacy, numeracy,
equity and student well-being. This date was selected to
coincide with the Municipal Elections, which will occur on
Monday, October 24, 2022.



963 Airport Road, North Bay, Ontario  P1B 8H1  |  Tel: 705.472.8170  | nearnorthschools.ca 

Christmas Break: 

¶ Option 1: Last day of school before the Christmas break –
Friday, December 16, 2022 – with a return to school on January
2, 2023.

¶ Option 2: Last day of school before the Christmas break –
Wednesday, December 21, 2022 – with a return to school on
Thursday, January 5, 2023.

¶ Option 3: Last day of school before the Christmas break –
Friday, December 23, 2022 – with a return to school on January
9, 2023.

The responses are as follows: 





Ministry of Education School Year Calendar 2022 – 2023  

Legend  H -
Statutory 
Holiday 

Scheduled 
Examination Day 

Professional 
Activity Day 

Board 
Designated 
Holiday 

Half 
Day 

First/Last 

School 

Day 

Month 
Number of 

Instructional 
Days 

Number of 
Professional 
Activity Days 

Number of 
Scheduled 

Examination 
Days 

1st Week 2nd Week 3rd Week 4th Week 5th Week 

M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F 

August 
2022 1 

1 

H 

2 3 4 



 
 

 



 
 

 

 
The Capital and Facilities departments are also moving forward with 
several large projects that are ready for tender, as they were previously 
approved in 2020-2021 but deferred. 
 
School Renewal Projects 
The Ministry provides annual allocations for School Renewal based on 
enrolment to school boards. The Board’s 2021-2022 capital allocation for 
School Renewal is $2,711,263. 
 
School Condition Improvement Projects 
The Ministry has continued to provide school boards with School 
Condition Improvement funding to address added School Renewal 
Needs. This funding has been allocated primarily based on each Board’s 
number of schools and the facility condition index of each school 
(recorded in VFA). The Board’s 2021-2022 capital allocation for School 
Condition Improvement is $3,705,656. 
 
Total projects in 2021-2022 being recommended to the Board for 
consideration and approval at this time amount to approximately 
$3,119,800 as per A



 
 

 

Appendix A 
Near North District School Board 

School Renewal and School Condition Improvement Capital Projects 2021-22 
 

COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure Stream (CVRIS) – HVAC upgrades  
 
These projects have been funded through CVRIS allocations, but are anticipated to 
experience funding overages, requiring additional capital funding: 
 
Argyle Public School 
F.J. McElligott Secondary School 
Ferris Glen Public School 
Mattawa District Public School 
Phelps Central Public School 
West Ferris Secondary School 
 
Other Capital Projects 
 
Evergreen Heights Education Centre – universal washroom upgrade 
 
MacTier Public School – playground upgrade for accessibility 
 
Mapleridge Public School – washrooms upgrade 
 
Parry Sound Public School – staircase repair 
 
Silver Birches Public School – roof replacement (following completion of HVAC work) 
 
South River Public School – engineering work for a parking lot/bus loop upgrade, which 





 

2 | P a g e  

Committee Chair Steer noted the value in establishing a Committee Chair to observe 
good governance practices and following the direction issued to all committees by 
Board Chair Aspin. Board Chair Aspin nominated Trustee Steer for the role of MYSP 
Committee Chair, noting the strong leadership skills he displays and his passion for the 
MYSP process. Director Myles ech



 

3 | P a g e  

¶ With this timeline noted, another MYSP Committee meeting is needed to further 
determine metrics for presentation to the Board prior to the February meeting. 
Staff directed to canvass schedules for a meeting in 2 weeks.  

¶ L. Blaskievich raised consideration for the metrics enveloped into the Director’s 
Annual Report and the 2021 Year in Review documents. It is noted that much 
work has been done to align department goals to the overall board improvement 
plans for student achievement and well-being (this is the relationship between 
the DIPSAWB and the BIPSAWB plans). There are several data points already 
being gathered that can be built up.  

o Chair Aspin noted he was pleased to hear this and provided perspective to 
note the need to provide an understanding to the Board of Trustees on the 



 

4 | P a g e  

 
As discussed, the next meeting date of the Multi-Year Strategic Planning Committee will 
be scheduled at the call of the Committee Chair in two weeks (early February).  
 
 

 
There being no further business to discuss, on January 18, 2022, the Multi-Year 
Strategic Plan Committee stands adjourned at 11:56 AM, moved by Board Chair Aspin, 
and seconded by Director Myles.   
 
Minutes: WS/km.  
 

4.0    Next Meeting Date  

5.0     Adjournment 



2022‐02‐10

1

MYSP 



2022‐02‐10

2

During  Stage 3: the 
implementation 
stage

We experience



 

 
Land Acknowledgement by SO Graves 
 
1.  Call to Order – 1:02 pm 
 
2.  Attendance via Zoom online meeting platform  
Albina Lavictoire (Chair)  Chris Guillemette  
Alan Bottomley   Susan Wilson   
Kimberley Gignac   Candy St. Onge 
Tim Graves    
Laura Hansman 
Lisa Paradis    
Louise Sargent 
 
Guests: Chris WalklingdP <
6.3802 Tc 0.0,<</MCI-32e0,<</M005 0c 0.004 Tl
/TT0 1 Tf
-0.0W(gdP(gent)]ne0 Tc 0 Tw 5.505 6.10 1 Tf
-0.002 Tc <<u)-1 (r)-h 0c 0.6/MCID 15 >>BDC 
/TT16.9C 
-6.725 -1.15 Td
( )Tj
EMC 
/P <8( )Tj
EMe1 <
6.380:y-rs

mailto:Timothy.graves@nearnorthschools.ca
mailto:melanie.allard@nearnorthschools.ca


mailto:timothy.graves@nearnorthshools.ca
mailto:melanie.allard@nearnorthschools.ca


mailto:oap@ontario.ca
mailto:autism@handstfhn.ca


 a r i # n o  a d d i t i o n s / u � d a t e s  t o  s u b m i t  a t  t h i s  t i m i .   � x T h e  g r o u p  c a n  r e s u b m i t  w i t h  a n y  c h a n g e s / u p d a t e s  i f  n e e d e d .     S t a n d i n g  i t e m s  C o r r e s p o n d e n c e  r e c e i v e d  � x H a l t o n  R e g i o n  F A S D  l e t t e r

 –  A  l e t t e r  o f  s u p p o r t  w a s  s e n t  o u t  l a s t  y e a r  t h a t  s u p p o r t e d  t h e  e n d o r s e m e n t  o f  B i l l . 8 8 2 .   N o  a c t i o n  i s  n e e d e d .   � x H a l t o n  r e g i o n  c o m m u n i c a b l e  d i s e a s e  a c t  l e t t e r  –  R e q u e s t i n g  t h a t  C O V I D

- 2 9 2 b e  a  d e s i g n a t e d  d i s e a s e  u n d e r  t h e  s c h o o l  p u p i l ’ s  i m m u n i z a t i o n  a c t .   T h e  M i n i s t r y  h a s  n o t  

s h a r e d  a n y  p l a n s  f o r  t h i s  t o  h a p p e n  t o

 w r i t e  a  l e t t e r  o f  s u p p o r t  a t  t h i s  t i m e .   � x O C D S B  l e t t e r  –  P P M  8 1  a n d  t h e  p r o v i s i o n  o f  h e a l t h  s u p p o r t  s e r v i c e s .   P r i n c i p a l  W i l s o n  d i s c u s s e d  h o w  t h e  B o a r d  p a r t n e r s  w i t h  O n e  K i d s  P l a c e  a r e  d i s t r i b u t e d .   N o  a c t i o n  i s  n e e d e d .   � x N i a g a r a  D S B  s h o r t a g e  o f  n u r s e s  –  T h e  s p e c  e d  t e a m  r e v i e w e d  t h e  s t u d e n t s  i n  o u r  B o a r d  a n d  f o u n d  t h a t  i t  o n l y  a p p l i e s  t o  t w o  s t u d e n t s ,  h o w e v e r  t h e s e  t w o  s t u d e n t  c a s e s  a r e  n o t  j u s t  s p e c i f i c  t o  n u r s i n g  c a r e .  ( C o m p l e x  h e a l t h  i s s u e s ) .  T h e s

e  s t u d e n t s  a r e  r e g u l a r l y  c h e c k e d  o n .   N o  a c t i o n  i s  n e e d e d .   

 P l a n n i n g  a n d  a c c o m m o d a t i o n  u p d a t e s  –

 T r u s t e e s  � x T r u s t e e  S a r g e n t  r e l a y e d  h o w  s t a f f  a n d  c o m m i t t e e s  a r e  w o r k i n g  w e l l 2 b e h i n d  t h e  s c e n e s  o n  v a r i o u s  p r o j e c t s .    � x T r u s t e e  B o t t o m l e y  a d d e d  t h a t  l i k e  o t h e r s  b u i l d i n g  s u p p l y  c h a i n s  h a v e 2 b e e n  i m p a c t e d  a n d  c o s t s  c o n t i n u e  t o  f l u c t u a t e .    M i n i s t r y  u p d a t e s  � x T h e m a j o r i t y  o f  u p d a t e s  r e c e i v e d  a r e  a r o u n d  C O V I D

- 1 9  m a n a g e m e n t  a n d  s c h o o l  o p e r a t i o n s .   � x S u p e r i n t e n d e n t  G r a v e s  r e l a y e d  t h a t  S e c o n d a r y  h a s  a l w a y s  b e e n  w o r k i n g  t o w a r d s  t h e  r e t u r n  t o  s e m e s t e r  f o r m a t .   T h e  M i n i s t r y  a n d  H e a l t h  U n i t  a p p r o v a l s  w e r e  r e c e i v e d  j u s t  r e c e n t l y .  S t a f f  




	Prevalent Medical Conditions Report and AG Feb 15 2022.pdf
	Policy Statement
	Guideline Summary
	1.0 INFORMATIVE LEGISLATION
	2.0 GUIDING PRINCIPLES AND NNDSB VISION
	3.0  TERMINOLOGY
	4.0 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
	4.2 Students with Prevalent Medical Conditions
	4.3 School Staff
	4.4 Principal
	4.5 School Board
	5.0 OVERVIEW OF PLANS OF CARE
	Plan of Care Appendices
	6.0 COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES/PRIVACY AND CONFIDENTIALITY
	7.0 DAILY ROUTINES
	8.0 SCHOOL TRIPS
	10.0 TRAINING OVERVIEW
	11.0 SAFETY CONSIDERATIONS
	12.0 REPORTING

	ADPFA3A.tmp
	Craig Myles, Director of Education
	Board Meeting February 15, 2022




